UNITED
NATIONS E

. . Distr.
Economic and Social GENERAL
Council

E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR. 14
7 May 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Twenti eth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 14t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 4 May 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M's. BONOAN- DANDAN

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES I N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Initial report of Ireland

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the nmeetings of the Committee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 41538 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR. 14
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (agenda item 8) (continued)

Initial report of lreland (E/ 1990/5/Add.34; E/C 12/QIRE/ 1
HR/ CESCR/ NONE/ 1991/ 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the menbers of the del egation of
Ireland took places at the Commttee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON wel conmed the del egation of Ireland and expressed the
hope that its dialogue with the Committee would be constructive. In
accordance with the Conmttee's usual practice, the delegation was invited to
make an introductory statenent, after which the Committee would ask questions
about the report on the basis of the |list of issues.

3. M. MDONACH (lreland) said that although Ireland' s second report
covering 1996 to 1998 was ready for subm ssion, on the Conmittee's advice it
was being deferred in order to take account of menbers' comments on the
initial report. He was sure that their views would be useful for Ireland s
eval uation of its inplenmentation of the Covenant.

4, Focusing on the questions raised on the Iist of issues, he said that one
key priority of his Governnent's Northern Ireland policy was ful
i mpl enmentation of the 1998 Bel fast Agreenent. It had been the subject of

positive referenda in both parts of Ireland. Wile Unionist opinion was nore
di vided, 73 per cent of persons polled in the North were currently in favour
His country was al so working in close collaboration with the British
Government and the pro-Agreenent Northern Ireland political parties to ensure
speedy i npl enentation of the Agreement, the human rights aspects of which had
been passed into British |law in Novenber 1998.

5. He outlined the positive steps taken by both parts of Ireland to that
end, including Ireland's intention to ratify the Council of Europe Convention
on National Mnorities and the signing of four supplenentary internationa
agreements with the British Government. All provisions were in place for the
institutions of the Agreenment to receive their full powers once an Executive
was fornmed, despite the problenms that had arisen over the issue of the
formati on of the Executive and deconmm ssioning, which both Governnments and the
pro- Agreenent parties were endeavouring to solve. Although there had been

set backs, such as the QOragh bonb that had killed 29 people, the main

param litary groupings in Northern Ireland were maintaining their ceasefires.

6. The Governnent had benefited fromthe expertise and cooperation of the
O fice of the High Conmm ssioner for Human Rights in setting up a nationa
human rights conm ssion, in connection with which the Prine Mnister had
undertaken to exceed requirenents and endeavour to set, rather than foll ow,
standards for international best practice in that field. The pertinent

| egi sl ati on was expected to be enacted during the current parlianmentary



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 3

session. Those institutions, in both North and South, would be extrenely
advanced and woul d undoubtedly increase human rights awareness and protection
in Ireland.

7. Turning to the conpatibility of the Irish constitutional and | ega
framework with the Covenant, he said that his Government was comitted to
strengt heni ng and underpi nning the constitutional position of human rights and
that Ireland had ratified the Covenant in 1989 on the basis of its
conpatibility with the Constitution. The 1996 report of the Constitutiona
Revi ew Group contai ned various recomendati ons whi ch were being consi dered,
together with other proposals, by the All-Party G reachtas (parlianentary)
Conmittee on the Constitution, which would nmake a detail ed study of the
econom ¢ and social rights aspects within a few nonths. Al though the rights
expressed in the Constituti on were not exhaustive, it was an organic | ega
docunent for the assertion of individual and fundanmental rights and the
identification of hitherto unrecognized rights.

8. Equal ity was assigned the highest priority by the Government, as
attested to by the new and very conprehensive 1998 Enpl oynent Equality Act -
due to be inplemented on 1 Septenber 1999 - which outlawed di scrim nation on
nine grounds in all work-related areas. The Act al so established a new
infrastructure, generously funded by the Governnent, to reinforce the new
anti-discrimnation code being provided under enploynment and equal status
legislation. It was conplemented by the 1999 Equal Status Bill - a commtnent
under the Bel fast Agreenent - which covered discrimnation outside the

enpl oynment context on the sane grounds as the Enploynment Equality Act, with
the three additional grounds of colour, nationality and national or ethnic
origin. The Government also intended shortly to ratify the Internationa
Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of Racial Discrimnation and to
lift one of Ireland's reservations to the Convention on the Elimnation of Al
Forms of Discrimnation agai nst Wonen.

9. Asyl um i ndeed posed a great challenge to Ireland: the nunber of
applications in 1995 had nore than doubled in 1996 and increased nore than
fourfold by 1998 to 4,626. The probl em had been addressed with the
establ i shment of an Asylum Task Force and further procedures for processing
applications had been applied, follow ng extensive consultation with the

O fice of the United Nations Hi gh Comm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR). Under
the Refugee Act, at the new, well-staffed Refugee Applications Centre each
applicant received a procedures docunment (available in 15 | anguages), which
provi ded for independent appeal at any stage of the process. Four independent
| awyers had been appointed by the Mnister of Justice, Equality and Law Reform
to serve as appeal authorities. A new Refugee Legal Service had gone into
operation in February 1999, and a nonitoring comrittee was being set up to
ensure that asylum seekers received quality refugee |egal service. Mreover,
a refugee | anguage support unit was being established at Trinity Coll ege
Dublin by the Mnistry of Education and Sci ence.

10. Al t hough not enshrined in the legislation as a right, an affordable
dwel ling suited to every household's needs was the keystone of Ireland' s

housi ng policy, for which purpose the CGovernnent had increased its socia

housi ng expendi ture.



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14

page 4

11. In 1996 the Comm ssion on the Status of People with Disabilities -
conposed | argely of disabled persons - had published a report on its
three-year study, entitled “A Strategy for Equality”. 1t contained

402 recomrendati ons for enpowering the di sabled and had becone the cornerstone
of Governnment policy. It was being successfully inplenmented by the new

m ni ster appointed with special responsibility for disability and equality.
The Governnent al so provided funding for the interimlrish Council of People
with Disabilities launched in 1997. An interim National Disability

Aut hority - conprising mainly disabled persons - advised the Governnent on
disability policy, and draft |egislation was under consideration to endow it
with statutory powers. Once that had been achieved and the equal status

| egi sl ati on had been enacted, a rights-based Disabilities Bill would be
prepar ed.
12. He outlined the Government's recent actions in favour of the nentally

handi capped, based on the 1997 Assessment of Need report of the Departnent of
Heal th and Children, which included increased funding for new purpose-built
day-care and residential facilities for persons currently accommdated in
psychi atric hospitals and other inappropriate settings, as well as for the
mai nt enance of existing facilities.

13. On the subject of social protection, the difficult econom c conditions
earlier experienced by Ireland, making for high unenploynent, had hindered its
i mpl enentati on of the 1986 reconmendati ons of the Conmi ssion on Socia

Wel fare. However, nore recently, with the sharp drop in unenpl oynent, socia
protection target rates in real terns had | argely been net.

14. The Governnent's unenpl oynent policy concentrated on pronoting
enpl oyability, backed by training schemes, as a neans of reducing
unenpl oyment, especially long-termunenploynent. 1In an effort to make its tax

and social security systenms nore enmpl oynent-friendly, poverty and enpl oynent
traps were being renoved, and special |lower rate contributions had been

i ntroduced. The Family Inconme Supplenment and Back to Work all owance schenes
were anong several neasures to pronote enploynment for the unenpl oyed

Measures were al so afoot to encourage social security beneficiaries in the
active age group to obtain regular enmploynent. The result of those neasures
had been a significant reduction in the unenploynment rate fromone of the

hi ghest in the European Union to 6.7 per cent, which was bel ow the EU average.

15. The 1997 National Anti-Poverty Strategy to pronote social inclusion of
the poor and excluded into mainstream society recogni zed that incone support
needed to be conbined with nore active policies, such as addressing

educati onal di sadvantage and probl ens peculiar to urban areas and rura
poverty. Special targets had been set and political and adm nistrative
structures put in place for inplementing the strategy and nonitoring progress.

16. Concerning the right to education, he said that the country was
convinced of the role of education, as the key to maxim zing the individual's
full potential, in ensuring social inclusion. The 1998 Educati on Act provided

a clear statutory framework for the Irish education system and placed great
enphasis on the concept of partnership in its operation. There was al so new
| egi sl ati on governing children with educati onal welfare problens, which raised



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 5

from1l5 to 16 the m ni mum school -| eavi ng age, and provided for a new nationa
board to coordi nate sonme services designed for children with difficulties at
school .

17. He said in conclusion that he | ooked forward to a constructive dial ogue
with the Commttee.

18. M. RIEDEL warmy wel coned the encouragingly |arge del egati on of

I rel and, which was appearing for the first time before the Commttee.
Referring to constitutional matters, he said he had noted that the 1937
Constitution as amended in 1987 nade sparse reference to econom c, social and
cultural rights. He was dismayed to |learn that the government comm ssion set
up to inplement the constitutional reformhad decided not to include those
rights in its constitutional anmendnents. Since the Ansterdam Treaty, which
had entered into force on the previous day, contained strong indications
concerning the revised European Soci al Charter and the Covenant, he wondered
whether it was too late for the Constitution to contain a core area of rights.

19. Turning to case |aw, he asked whether Ireland had as yet translated the
provi sions of the Covenant into its donestic |legislation so that they could be
applied in the courts, and whether the courts had nmade reference on any
occasion to individual articles of the Covenant. |ndeed, considering that the
Irish Constitution largely reflected the bill-of-rights approach of the

Uni versal Declaration of Human Ri ghts, he wi shed to know the authorities
attitude to the optional protocol proposed by the Cormttee in 1998, which was
i ntended to confer on econom c, social and cultural rights the sane status as
civil and political rights.

20. He asked whether it was likely that the dial ogue would |ead the Irish
authorities to review the need for any reservati ons what soever and w thdraw
those it had expressed to articles 2 (2) and 13 (2) (a) of the Covenant.
Furthernore, given the inportance the Conmittee assigned to the contribution
of non-governmental organizations (NGOs) - a source of imense know edge - he
sought i nformation on those organi zations' participation in the drafting of
Ireland's initial report and their contribution to its content, and asked
whet her there was a national human rights conm ssioner who processed the

i nformati on they provided.

21. M. AHMED al so warmly wel coned the Irish delegation and commended it on
the I evel of representation and the detail of its witten replies. An NGO
the Irish Conm ssion for Justice and Peace, had praised the Irish authorities
open conmi ssioning of coments from NGOs, as well as the positive devel opnents
the country had known in recent years. However, the International Labour
Organi zati on had observed that the 1894 Irish Merchant Shipping Act stil
cont ai ned rather inhumane disciplinary neasures agai nst wayward seafarers,

whi ch he hoped woul d soon be anmended to bring Irish legislation into line with
the Covenant. He was pleased to |earn that an enployment equality bill had
been enacted, despite the Supreme Court's earlier ruling that such a bil

woul d be unconstitutional

22. It appeared froma 1998 United States State Departnent report that,
while Ireland generally respected the human rights of its citizens, there were
still a nunber of disturbing areas. They included substandard and abusive



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 6

prison conditions, continued special arrest and detention authority and
non-jury courts, occasional censorship, discrimnation and vi ol ence agai nst
worren and children, and the |ack of specific |egislation on discrimnation
especi al ly agai nst the disabled and the Travelling Conmunity. How did the
country plan to rectify then?

23. M. HUNT allied hinmself with the corments nade by M. Ri edel, many of

whi ch he had intended to raise. He hoped that the Governnment of Ireland would
gi ve synpathetic treatnent to economc, social and cultural rights inits
constitutional reform In the current Constitution, dating fromthe 1930s,
sonme rights were justiciable, or, as expressed in the Constitution of Ireland,
“cogni sable”. Those referred mainly to civil and political rights, although
education was also featured. The “Directive Principles of Social Policy”

menti oned i n paragraph 7 of the Core Docunent (HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 15/ Rev. 1)
governed econom c, social and cultural rights, but they were generally for the
gui dance of parlianment, and the rights thensel ves were not justiciable.

Hence, there was already a dichotony between civil and political rights on

the one hand and econom c, social and cultural rights on the other in Irel and
in the 1930s, before it appeared at the international level. He would Iike

to know what the influence of the directive principles had been over the

past 50 or so years; had it been purely synbolic, or had the principles
actually affected policy?

24, Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said it woul d have been useful to have the new
report containing updated information ahead of tinme; she had noted nmany

i nportant points, which it would have been hel pful to have to hand. She had
been pl eased to hear that there would be a new national Human Ri ghts

Conmi ssion and that the Constitution was still being reviewed, but in the
light of those facts she was concerned by the failure to answer question 6 of
the Iist of issues, on whether positive consideration was being given to
inserting the rights protected under the Covenant into the new Constitution
Finally, with regard to the new anti-discrimnation |aw, many criteria had
been taken into account and several of them had been listed, but she had heard
no reference to age; did the | aw protect agai nst age-discrimnation?

25. M. SADI commented that the Good Friday Agreenent provided the genera
framework for all the econom c, social and cultural rights, since wthout
peace, they could not be enjoyed. He asked to what extent the delegation felt
optim stic about the chances of attaining harnony between two religious groups
that had been in conflict for many years. The experience of many countries
had shown that such divisions could not easily be overcome, but he hoped the
Agreenment woul d provide a solid peace. Did the Good Friday Agreenent enjoy
grass-roots support? If not, what efforts were being made to increase that
support? It was necessary to create a culture of reconciliation, as

South Africa had done with its Truth and Reconciliation Conm ssion; were any
such efforts being undertaken in Ireland?

26. Both the Conmittee and the del egati on appeared to be pinning their hopes
on the Constitutional Review Group. The Conmittee had hoped that it would
fill existing gaps with regard to economc, social and cultural rights, and
particularly that the Goup would not nerely “look in depth” at the issue, but
woul d at |east “look favourably” on it. According to information obtained
from NGO sources, it had already rejected the insertion of econom c, socia



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR. 14
page 7

and cultural rights. Could the del egation give a nore positive prognosis? He
wonder ed what the conposition of the Group was, since that could affect the
out come.

27. M. MDONACH (lreland) said that some questions mght require further
research, but the del egation hoped to address themall. Mny questions had
been asked about the Constitutional Review Goup; it was nade up of experts,
acadenmics, | awers and forner public servants. Their report had been sent to
the All-Party Parliamentary Conmittee chaired by Deputy Brian Leni han

Di fferent countries had different perceptions of how denocracy operated, and
the report of the Constitutional Review Group had concluded that “the main

reason why the Constitution should not confer personal rights ... [was] that
those [were] essentially political matters; it would be a distortion of
denocracy to transfer decisions on major issues of policy ... to an unel ected
judiciary”. The report would be considered by the All-Party Parlianmentary

Committee, which would take into account reconmendati ons made by ot her bodies
and commttees, including the Conmittee on Econom c, Social and Cul tura
Ri ghts, and woul d deci de whet her constitutional anmendments were needed.

28. Wth regard to the Good Friday Agreenent, it was an agreenent that
applied within Northern Ireland and not between Northern Ireland and the
Republic of Ireland. Seventy-two per cent of the popul ati on supported and
continued to support the Good Friday Agreement, and in any normal society

72 per cent would be considered a handsome majority; however, there were
relatively very small groups on either side that were apparently not prepared
to accept the will of the mapjority. Both Governnents and the pro-Agreenent
parties were working for wi der acceptance. The del egati on hoped and expected
that the Agreenent would be inplenented in full and would | ead to harnony in
the future.

29. Replying to Ms. Jinmenez Butraguefio, he confirmed that age was one of
the nine criteria in the anti-discrimnation bill. He clarified that the
reply to question 6 was effectively that the All-Party Conmttee woul d take
account of the provisions of the Covenant, and that until that Committee made
its decision, no further progress could be made on the issue. It was
unfortunate that the new material had not been distributed; it was in fact

al ready avail able as the second periodic report of Ireland, but it was the
responsibility of the secretariat to circulate it, and it had been the
secretariat's decision to withhold it.

30. There had been few court cases in the area of econom c, social and
cultural rights. The European Convention was recognized as influential in
public policy; but in the main inplenentation of policies inline with the
Covenant was achieved politically and adm nistratively and not through the
courts.

31. Regardi ng M. Ahned's queries, he stated that nerchant shippi ng was
virtually absent fromlreland. He was not famliar with the Act cited, but
suspected the provisions nentioned would be found unconstitutional by

Irish courts. Addressing the issue of the Enploynment Equality Bill, he said
there had been three or four points which had led to its not being accepted,
for instance, a technical issue on evidence for discrimnation. The Bill had

tried to prohibit discrimnation on nine grounds, including disability, and



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 8

one substantial reason why it had not been passed was the decision by the

courts that too much positive discrimnation was built into the Bill. It had
since been revised and anended, re-presented to parlianent, and enacted in
1998. Ireland therefore now had satisfactory anti-discrimnation |egislation

al t hough they were finding, as did many countries, that the cost of provision
was a problem

32. Prison overcrowdi ng was certainly a problem but major strides had been
made, and 1999 woul d see the opening of one wonen's prison and two nen's
prisons, the first built in decades, providing a total of 1,200 extra pl aces.

33. Ms. BARRON (Ireland), addressing the issue of the practice of the courts
and the extent to which they had considered article 45 of the Constitution and
the directive principles on social policy, stated that provisions specifically
relating to the Covenant had not, as far as she knew, been raised. However,

al though the directives were not justiciable, they did guide the parliament.
Since 1972, the courts had held that rights could be extrapolated from
article 40.3 of the Constitution (the unenunerated rights provision). The
right to work and the right to earn a livelihood had in fact been derived from
the article 45 principles. However, although the courts |ooked to article 45
to extend the personal rights provisions, there was no specific ruling of the
Irish courts allowing article 45 to be invoked in donestic courts.

34. M. ROMN (Ireland) said that the Optional Protocol was under

exam nation. Ireland had already ratified the Optional Protocol to the
Convention on Civil and Political Rights and, in principle, viewed
ratification positively; however, they had to see the texts, and decide on
t hat basi s.

35. NGOs had certainly been involved, particularly in the preparation of the
second report, and the reports for the Conmittee on the Rights of the Child
and the Conmittee on Civil and Political Rights. The Government held ful
consultations with every NGO it felt could provide useful input, and
additionally there was a chapter specifically detailing the views of NGOs.

36. M. MDONAGH (lreland) said that Ireland would continue to maintain its
reservations. The reservation on education was naintai ned, since the Irish
CGovernment believed that parents should have the priority right to choose, and
not have decisions inposed by the State. The reservation on the Irish

| anguage was nmi nt ai ned, since they considered it a cultural requirenent.

37. The CHAI RPERSON i nvited questions on articles 2.2 and 3, with reference
to questions 8-15 of the |ist of issues.

38. M. TEXIER wel comed the nunerous and highly-qualified delegation. The
Covenant provided for international cooperation to help countries overcone
problems in inplenentation of the Covenant; what percentage of the nationa
budget of Ireland was devoted to international cooperation? The

United Nations target was 0.7 per cent, but few countries managed to achi eve
that. What was the figure in Ireland, and where was the aid directed? Ws it
bilateral aid or channelled through international institutions? Ws any of it
focused on assistance to poorer countries to pronote greater respect for the
provi si ons of the Covenant?



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 9

39. There was a | engthy passage in the witten replies on refugees,
including their civil and political rights and econom c, social and cultura
rights. However, if he had understood correctly, the previously tiny trickle
of dozens or hundreds of refugees had now turned into a vast flood of over
4,000, overwhelmng Ireland' s capacity to cope and creating problens. [If it
had been decided not to apply the 1996 Refugee Act, how were refugees dealt

wi th? What nmeasures were taken to reduce the waiting period? Under the
CGeneva Convention, a conpetent authority had to determ ne status and the right
to asylum \What neasures were taken during that period to ensure enjoynent of
their econom c, social and cultural rights; and, specifically, did asylum
seekers have access to work whilst awaiting a decision on their status?

40. M. PILLAY wished to raise questions regarding the absence of

| egislation to pronote the enjoynent of economc, social and cultural rights.
The del egati on had acknow edged that there was no rights-based disability
legislation in Ireland, i.e. there was a | ack of specific legislation for the
provi sion of services to the disabled to enable themto enjoy those rights; he
found that surprising. The Report of the Conmm ssion on the Status of Disabled
People “A Strategy for Equality” had found that public attitudes to disability

were still based on charity rather than on rights, and the odds were stacked
agai nst di sabl ed people at every turn. Very few public or private buil dings
had di sabl ed access. VWhy was there still no |l egislation on access to

bui l di ngs? There was al so no | egislation on provision of services to the
nment al | y handi capped, and even no | aw provi di ng acconmodati on for them

Par agraph 673 of the initial report of Ireland stated that new | egi sl ati on was
bei ng prepared to bring Irish legislation into conformty with the European
Convention on Human Rights; yet in 1999 |legislation on that issue was stil
bei ng prepared by the Mnistry of Justice. Again, with regard to

di scrimnation against and the rights of people with a nental disorder

par agraph 169 of the witten replies repeated the assertion made in 1996.

41. Ei ghty per cent of disabled people were unenployed, which was 10 tines
the nunber in the general population. The status of disabled people with
regard to i ncome, education, mobility and housing denmonstrated that they were
treated as second class citizens. He asked whether the new Enpl oynent
Equality Act of 1998 brought confort to the di sabl ed unenpl oyed. As a judge
hi msel f, he found the provisions anbi guous, since article 16.3 (c) was a
derogation from16.3 (a). |If enploying a disabled person entailed a
substantial cost to an enpl oyer, the enployer could refuse to enploy that
person. Obviously the courts woul d deci de what constituted substantial costs,
but it appeared to be an inbuilt opportunity for discrimnation

42. He asked where di sabl ed peopl e addressed conpl ai nts about

discrimnation. |If he was not m staken, there was a mechani smfor conplaints
in the Equal Status Bill. Ireland had a problemregarding the children of the
poor and of refugees being denied access to education, housing and health.

The Travelling Conmunity was al so discrimnated against. The Bill ought to
bring an end to discrimnation against those groups, but would it effectively
do so?

43. M. KUZNETSOV said that, although he was not very famliar with the
country's legislation, he had been surprised to hear that Ireland had not yet
ratified the Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forns of Racia




E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 10

Di scrimnation. The Irish Government had stated that the Convention would be
ratified once the national Equal Status Bill had cone into force. That was
surprising since the |legislation was usually adapted where such conventions
contradicted domestic |legislation, so as to be consistent with the
conventions. Further conments on the matter woul d be appreci at ed.

44, Secondly, in relation to the reservations on article 2.2 of the
Covenant, the country report stated that access to certain professions was
restricted to people with a know edge of the Irish | anguage. Wuld it be
possible to obtain a Iist of such professions and was the list revised, at
| east periodically?

45, M. CEAUSU said that the report submtted was informative but on

occasi ons too detailed and prevented the pertinent facts from emnerging
clearly. Paragraph 12 of the report cited the text of article 40.1 of the
Constitution. According to that article, all citizens should, as human
persons, be held equal before the |law. However, according to the second part
of the article, equality before the I aw did not nmean that the State woul d

di sregard differences of capacity, be they physical or noral, and socia
function in its enactnments. The text of the article was unclear in ternms of
its practical consequences. Firstly, a principle was stated, i.e. equality
before the law, but that was followed by the recognition of the State's right
to seek exenptions to that principle in its decision-making process. The idea
of physical capacity was clear but, by contrast, noral capacity was undefi ned.
VWhat did that mean in terns of State deci sions? Moreover, when did

di fferences of social function cone into play?

46. As regards the Equal Status Bill, two draft |aws had been adopted in the
fight against discrimnation. However, the first of the two drafts had been
decl ared unconstitutional by the Supreme Court. A verdict was al so awaited
fromthat Court on the second draft |aw. What were the reasons invoked by the
Court for declaring the first of the two draft |aws unconstitutional when that
| aw had al ready been adopted by the Parlianent? WAs the decision linked to
the text of article 40 of the Constitution?

47. M. AHMED, citing exanples of discrimnatory practices, said that

in 1998 the Human Rights Comm ttee had noted with concern the existence of

di scrimnatory distinctions between citizens who were Irish by birth and those
who were naturalized. Discrimnatory treatment had al so been meted out to
non-nationals. How was it possible to explain those distinctions? Secondly,
di scrimnation was prevalent in relation to access to health and education
services. Also in 1998, the Committee on the Rights of the Child had noted
with concern the difficulties faced by children from vul nerabl e and

di sadvant aged groups, including Travellers' and refugee children. Travellers
children were sonetines denied access to schools and were forced to study in
separate classroons. Thirdly, discrimnation was a major part of the daily
life of Traveller communities, thereby ostracizing themfrom normal society.
The negative inpact of such isolation represented a barrier to the devel opnent
of good relations between Travellers and settled conmunities.

48. Fourthly, disabled people, who represented 10 per cent of the overal
popul ati on, had no institutional focal point for addressing human rights
conplaints in relation to their disabilities. Relevant cases had been cited



E/ C. 12/1999/ SR 14
page 11

by the Irish Conm ssion for Justice and Peace and the Council for Socia

Wel fare. Recently the Irish Government Conmi ssion had referred to the status
of people with disabilities and had ternmed such people the neglected citizens
of Ireland. Many suffered intolerable conditions owing to outdated social and
econonmi ¢ policies and unthinking public attitudes. Furthernore, the

United States State Departnent Report indicated that 15 per cent of the Irish
popul ati on had disabilities, and 80 per cent of them were unenpl oyed.

Mor eover, there was no |l egislation to protect them agai nst discrimnation in
enpl oynment. The probl ens faced by di sabl ed peopl e had been highlighted by the
Irish Council of People with Disabilities. The Council had stated that even
after the introduction of the Enployment Equality Act, enployers, were
permtted to discrimnate against the enploynent of the disabled on grounds of
cost. Under the terns of the Act, a person with a disability would be
regarded as conpetent to undertake any duties with the assistance of specia
treatnment or facilities. Mreover, the Act al so stated that an enpl oyer
shoul d do all that was reasonable to acconmpdate the needs of a person with a
disability by providing the special treatnent or facilities. However, the
refusal or failure to provide such treatnent or facilities would not be
regarded as unreasonable if such provision gave rise to a cost other than a
nom nal cost to the enployer. It was inportant in that case to define the
concept of a nominal cost. The Act would clearly give rise to much
litigation, since it contained a built-in facility for enployers to refuse to
give work to di sabled people. The Act did not renedy their difficult
situation at all.

49. M. SADI asked how the Equal Status Bill and the Enpl oynent Equality Act
were to be interpreted in the light of article 40.1 of the Constitution. That
article appeared to suggest that different kinds of treatment were given to
different people. As regards people who were mentally or physically disabl ed,
the Equal Status Bill alone was insufficient if discrimnation were to be
elimnated. Such people also needed preferential treatnment since the two

pi eces of legislation referred to did not go far enough. Furthernore, was a
cultural and indeed religious stignma attached to disability? How were

di sabl ed people treated by the public in general ?

50. M. WMR ZAMBRANO said that it was not so nmuch Ireland's failure to
ratify the Convention on the Elimnation of Al Fornms of Racial Discrimnation
that concerned himas the reasons for that failure. Even though nmechani sns
and procedures differed between countries, usually such a convention was
ratified and donestic | aws were subsequently adapted to them whereas in
Ireland the process appeared to be the opposite. Wiy was that the case?

51. More details should also be provided with regard to m grant workers.
Were they common in Ireland and what were the social repercussions of their
presence?

52. M. GRISSA enphasi zed that the stipulated requirenment of conpul sory
know edge of Irish was superfluous since know edge of a national |anguage to
work in the civil service was common to all countries. Furthernore, it did
not appear necessary to refer to the concept of noral capacity in the
Constitution. Finally, how was the termdisability defined in Ireland? G ven
that the nunmber of disabl ed people was high, was an assessnent made in
relation to nmedical criteria?



E/ C. 12/1999/ SR 14
page 12

53. M. THAPALI A said that despite national |egislation and the coments
made by the Governnment there were still nmany cases of discrimnation. He
cited a report issued in the United States which said that Travellers were the
| argest distinct group outside normal society in Ireland. Furthernore, in
1991 a European Parliament commttee had singled out the Tavellers' Community
as the group nost frequently subjected to discrimnation. 1In addition, the
Human Ri ghts Conmittee had recommended that Ireland should take action on

i mproving the situation of Traveller Conmunities in public affairs. Could
case | aw be provi ded where decisions had been taken in favour of Travellers
and naturalized citizens?

54, M. MDONACH (lreland), responding to the questions raised, said that
the case law relating to Travellers contai ned various instances of

di scrimnation against them The two npst recent pieces of |egislation, the
Enpl oyment Equal ity Act and the Equal Status Bill, had not yet cone into
force; however, Travellers had al ready obtained justice in cases of

di scrimnation. As regards the definition of disability, the Act in question
of fered the wi dest possible coverage. It singled out five categories of

di sabl ed people. Those categories included the total or partial absence of a
person's bodily or nental functions, including the absence of a part of their
body, the mal function, malformation or disfigurenment of a part of a person's
body, and al so a condition, disease or illness affecting a person's thought
processes, perception of reality, enotions or judgenent resulting in disturbed
behavi our.

55. It was true that in Ireland the practice had been not to ratify

i nternational conventions until appropriate donestic |egislation had been put
in place. That was not the case in certain other countries but Ireland had
thus far not encountered any problens in that regard.

56. As for legislation on disability, following the ruling by the Suprene
Court that the Enployment Equality Act was unconstitutional, a new Act had
been produced, stipulating, as mentioned earlier, that an enpl oyee had to be
considered fully competent and capabl e of undertaking the duties attached to a
job, if that person could do the job with the provision of special treatnent
or facilities, provided that the cost of such treatnent or facilities was not
nmore than a nom nal one. The Act placed the obligation of reasonable
accommodation on the enployer; it did not, however, define the term nom nal

whi ch depended on the sphere of its application. In that regard, the schene
of grants for workpl ace adaptati on and equi pment shoul d be borne in mnd, when
considering the cost of providing treatnment and facilities. Under recently
enacted legislation, if a person believed that he or she was the victim of
discrimnation, the matter could be referred to the director of equality

i nvestigations, who would act as the first instance of redress. The

Enpl oyment Equal ity Act and the Equal Status Bill both dealt with
discrimnation. Once they had conme into force, a Disability Act would be

i ntroduced which would pronote further the rights of people with disabilities.

57. Wth reference to M. Sadi's question as to what formthe genera
framework of a projected disability Act m ght take, the work programe had
envi saged first inmplementing the anti-discrimnation |egislation in a genera
sense and then considering its inpact on di sabl ed persons, but as yet no bil
was ready.



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 13

58. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO asked whether Irish conpanies were offered
i ncentives to enploy disabled persons.

59. M. PILLAY noted that Ireland had been preparing |egislation for sonme
time and asked what the status on such |egislation was.

60. M. AHMED said that he would like to rem nd the del egation that the
Committee required answers on the discrimnatory distinctions between Irish
citizens by birth and naturalized citizens, non-nationals, refugees and asyl um
seekers and how each category was treated under Irish | aw

61. M. W MR ZAMBRANO asked for information on m grant workers, as he would
assune that there would be a high nunber of such persons in Ireland in the
light of the country's econom c devel opment.

62. M. MDONACH (lreland) said that enployers were provided with grants to
of fer enploynment to di sabled persons. Quotas for the enpl oynent of disabled
persons al so existed in the civil service and, generally, in the public
service. There were simlar schenes in the private sector

63. Al t hough no exact figures were available, mgrant workers did not
represent a major group in Ireland. Foreign enployees were mainly fromthe
Eur opean Union States, which meant that they enjoyed the sane rights as Irish
citizens.

64. Ms. ONEILL (Ireland) said that a distinction was nmade between Irish
citizens by birth and naturalized citizens. Under existing |egislation
non- nati onal spouses of Irish-born citizens could apply for post-nuptia
naturalization after three years. There were no such provisions for

non- nati onal spouses of naturalized Irish citizens but those spouses could
apply for citizenship in the normal way after five years. However, it was
possible for the Mnister to waive the criteria, which was often done.

65. The children of naturalized Irish citizens born outside of Ireland did
not automatically assunme Irish citizenship as did the children of Irish-born
citizens. However, they could obtain citizenship by registering in the
Foreign Births Register of the Department of Foreign Affairs. As regards the
general discrimnation of non-nationals, so-called “political discrimnation”
criteria were applied to non-European Econonmic Area (EEA) nationals based on
resi dence, education, work and so on. Differential treatnent al so depended on
whet her citizens were fromthe European Union or fromvisa or non-visa
countries. However, generally speaking, there were specific differences
between Irish citizens and non-nationals in relation to inmgration policy.
Refugees were entitled to the sane general rights as Irish citizens. Once
granted refugee status, they could apply for Irish citizenship. Persons were
allowed to have dual nationality and were not required to give up their other
nationality in order to acquire Irish nationality. However certain countries
required their nationals to give up their nationality if they acquired Irish
citizenship. Asylum seekers were entitled to the sanme health and welfare
benefits as anybody el se. However they were not allowed to work and only had
access to primary and secondary educati on



E/ C. 12/1999/ SR 14
page 14

66. M. MDONAGH (lreland), addressing the issue of the Travelling
Comunity, said that discrimnation in enploynent against Travellers was
illegal and that there was no discrimnation in education in their regard.

67. M. DOYLE (lreland) said that the State had instituted a number of
positive discrimnation nmeasures to assist the children of Travellers. The
policy's aimwas to integrate the children in the Irish education system In
1998, the Mnister of Education had set up an Advisory Conmmittee on Traveller
Educati on, which included three Travellers, to advise himon the future

devel opnent of services in that area. Positive discrimnation nmeasures

i ncl uded support for Traveller pre-school centres, and the provision of
addi ti onal special resource teachers to devel op the appropriate education for
Traveller children. Admittedly, only a small nunber of Traveller children
attended post-primary schools, but the State's objective was to increase that
nunmber substantially over the com ng years. Targets, policies and additiona
fundi ng had been identified to that end. |In addition, specific centres for
Travel |l er children had been established in the event that post-primary
education proved i nappropriate. Both junior and senior Traveller training
centres had been set up and a national coordi nator had been appointed by the
State to pronote the devel opnent of the senior network and to report on its
effectiveness. Further nonitoring was provided for through a visiting teacher
service and a national education officer

68. M. MDONACH (lreland), referring to the question posed on article 40.1
of the Constitution of Ireland (para. 57 of the initial report of Ireland -
E/ 1990/ 5/ Add. 34) relating to differences based on noral capacity, said that
for exampl e, some persons' noral record would exclude them fromworking in
childcare in the interest of protecting the children.

69. The | anguage requirenent applied mainly to the public sector, allow ng
for persons desirous of a public sector service and who were entitled to the
provi sion of that service in the Irish |language to obtain it.

70. There was absolutely no cultural or religious stigm attached to persons
with disabilities. The nmental health |egislation had been del ayed on account
of other |egislation being considered but enactnent was expected | ater that
year.

71. M. ROMN (Ireland), responding to M. Texier's question on

i nternati onal cooperation and devel opnent assi stance progranmes, said that the
anount allocated to such programes represented 0.31 per cent of GDP (gross
domestic product), up fromO.16 per cent in 1992. Because of Ireland s rapid
econom c growth, the substantial percentage increases rendered absol ute
figures even greater for the devel opment budget because of the expandi ng GDP
The Governnent was comritted to the United Nations 0.7 per cent of CGDP

devel opnent assi stance but had set itself an interimtarget to be reached by
2002. The budget was divided into bilateral assistance and contributions to
i nternational organizations. Bilateral assistance focused on social and
econom ¢ devel opnent and a nunber of African countries had been targeted for
that. Bilateral assistance programes included human rights and

denocrati zation clauses in order to channel sone of the funds into
denocrati zati on/ good governance projects, which would pronote the devel opnment
of relevant organs in the recipient countries.



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 15

72. M. MDONACH (lreland) said that the Refugee Act had been designed to
process some 300 to 400 applications per year but that they were being swanped
with 10 tinmes that nunber rendering the procedures of the Act unworkable. The
Government had approved anendnents to the Refugee Act which would be included
in the immgration bill before the appropriate parlianentary conmttee.

Consul tations were under way to review the Act, in the longer term based on a
conparative study of European Union asylum | egislation. Procedures
established in agreenent with the United Nations Hi gh Comr ssioner for
Refugees (UNHCR) were in operation and provided for appeals at all stages of
the process, a newy-introduced | egal refugee service, a docunentation centre
and the training of staff by the UNHCR

73. The CHAI RPERSON invited Committee nmenbers to pose questions on
articles 6 to 9 of the Covenant.

74. M. PILLAY asked why were adequate resources not being devoted by
Ireland to vocational training courses and apprenticeship schemes, in the
light of the fact that secondary school students' enrol nment in courses and
schenmes were bel ow the | evel of Organization of Econom c Cooperation and
Devel opnent (OECD) countries.

75. M. CEAUSU, referring to paragraph 98 of Ireland' s initial report, asked
whet her there were any limtations to the right to work, or the free choice of
enpl oynment or enpl oyer for foreigners authorized to work in Ireland.

76. M. TEXIER said that, in a 1997 report, the Irish Government had
indicated that it intended to nodify the Merchant Shipping Act and asked to be
updated on that. He also wanted to know what neasures had been taken to
reintegrate |ong-term unenpl oyed persons in the | abour market. Turning to the
m ni mum wage, he remarked on the small percentage of the workforce which was
guaranteed a statutory m ni rum wage (para. 81 of the witten replies) and
asked whet her the Governnent intended to increase the percentage.

77. M. GRISSA said that the information provided was not up-to-date and
inquired as to the current unenploynent rate. He would have |iked to have
seen a breakdown by gender and age, in order to arrive at a nore bal anced
judgenent. For exanple, what was the unenployment rate anong wonen? WAs
there a correl ation between the greater nunber of wonen in higher education
and the unenpl oynent rate anmong wonmen? What was the unenpl oyment rate anong
the di sabled? The Commttee would |ike to have nore specific data in order to
anal yse the effects of unenploynent on different groups.

78. M. KOUZNETSOV noted that, although Ireland was not a signatory to the
Covenant, the European Social Charter recognized the right to set up trade
unions. He noted that trade unions existed in Ireland but that Irish

| egislation did not provide for trade union rights or the formation of trade
unions. Did the Government intend to adapt |egislation on the right to strike
inline with the European Social Charter? Referring to Ireland's witten
reply to issue 18 (HR/ CESCR/ NONE/ 1999/ 1; para. 82) indicating that civi
servants and teachers had their own dedi cated di spute-settling nechanisns, he
woul d i ke to know why those two particul ar categories had been established
and why there was a difference in arbitration schenmes between them and the
rest of the workforce




E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 14
page 16

79. M. CEAUSU, referring to paragraph 138 of the initial report of Ireland
(E/ 1990/ 5/ Add. 34) on Regi stered Enpl oynent Agreenents, asked whether the
request for registration was made by one or both parties to the agreenent,
whet her all, or only sone agreenents could be regi stered, and whether the
Labour Court could refuse to register collective agreements. He commented
that the Trade Union Act, 1941, which provided for the obligatory acquisition
of a negotiation licence, was very old, especially against the background of
changi ng international standards, in particular in the International Labour
Organi zation. Referring to paragraph 181 of the initial report of Ireland, he
guesti oned whether the granting of negotiation |icences and the power of the
M ni ster for Enterprise and Enpl oynent to exenpt certain bodies were in |ine
with international nornms on the right to freedom of association and whet her
such power wi elded by one Mnister did not violate the principle of equality
enshrined in that right.

80. M. W MR ZAMBRANO said that Ireland's answer to issue 19 was i nprecise.
He woul d think that a trade union that declared a strike would be liable for
ensui ng econon ¢ damages. He said he would like to know exactly what the

i munities mentioned in paragraph 83 of Ireland's witten replies were.

81. The CHAI RPERSON said that consideration of the initial report of Ireland
woul d resume the followi ng norning after a prelimnary neeting with Commttee
menbers only.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p.m




